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12G-372CPDOCKET NO. 12G-372CP
COLORADO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION,

 
COMPLAINANT, 
V.

Hy-mountain transportation inc., doing business as high mountain taxi,

 
RESPONDENT.
12G-372CPDOCKET NO. 12G-373CP

COLORADO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION,

 
COMPLAINANT,

V.

HY-MOUNTAIN TRANSPORTATION INC. DBA HIGH MOUNTAIN TAXI,

 
RESPONDENT.    

DOCKET NO. 12G-374CP
COLORADO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION,

 
COMPLAINANT,

V.

HY-MOUNTAIN TRANSPORTATION INC. DBA HIGH MOUNTAIN TAXI, 

 
RESPONDENT.    

DOCKET NO. 12G-375CP

COLORADO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION,

 
COMPLAINANT,

V.

HY-MOUNTAIN TRANSPORTATION INC. DBA HIGH MOUNTAIN TAXI,

 
RESPONDENT.   

RECOMMENDED DECISION OF
administrative law judge
G. Harris Adams 
Granting motion, accepting stipulation, assessing civil penalty, Accepting
Payment, waiving response time, Vacating hearing, and closing proceedings
Mailed Date:  June 8, 2012
I. statement

1. This is a civil penalty assessment proceeding brought by the Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (Staff) against Respondent, Hy-Mountain Transportation Inc., doing business as High Mountain Taxi (High Mountain or Respondent).  

2. In Docket No. 12G-372CP, Respondent was issued CPAN No. 103485 on April 3, 2012, seeking a civil penalty $1,210 for one violation of the Rules Regulating Transportation by Motor Vehicle, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6-6103(b)(II), including a 10 percent surcharge.  CPAN No. 103485 was served upon Respondent on April 5, 2012.  

3. In Docket No. 12G-373CP, Respondent was issued CPAN No. 103484 on April 3, 2012, seeking a civil penalty of $275 for one violation of 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 371.41(a)(1)(i), including a 10 percent surcharge.  
CPAN No. 103484 was served upon Respondent on April 5, 2012.

4. In Docket No. 12G-374CP, Respondent was issued CPAN No. 103495 on April 2, 2012, seeking a civil penalty of $275 for one violation of 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 CFR 391.41(a)(1)(i), including a 10 percent surcharge.  CPAN No. 103495 was served upon Respondent on April 5, 2012.

5. In Docket No. 12G-375CP, Respondent was issued CPAN No. 103494 on April 2, 2012, seeking a civil penalty of $275 for one violation of 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 CFR 391.41(a)(1)(i), including a 10 percent surcharge.  CPAN No. 103494 was served upon Respondent on April 5, 2012.

6. On May 1, 2012, Staff filed its Entry of Appearance and Notice pursuant to Rule 1007(a) of the Rules of Practice and Procedure, 4 CCR 723-1, in Docket Nos. 12G-372CP, 12G-373CP, 12G-374CP, and 12G-375CP.

7. The Commission referred the above-captioned matters to an administrative law judge (ALJ) during the Weekly Meeting held May 2, 2012.

8. By Decision No. R12-0483-I, issued May 8, 2012, Docket Nos. 12G-372CP, 
12G-373CP, 12G-374CP, and 12G-375CP were consolidated.  Docket No. 12G-372CP was designated the primary docket. 

9. By Decision No. R12-0500-I, issued May 11, 2012, a hearing was scheduled in this matter.

10. On June 5, 2012, Staff filed its Motion to Approve Stipulation and Settlement Agreement, Vacate All Pre-Hearing Deadlines, and Request for Waiver of Response Time (Motion).  The parties request approval of the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement (Agreement) that was simultaneously filed with the Motion. 

11. On June 8, 2012, High Mountain paid the Commission $740, the total compromised assessment amount for all counts. 

II. findings, and conclusions
12. Respondent does not challenge the Commission’s jurisdiction in this proceeding.  The Commission has subject matter jurisdiction over this case and personal jurisdiction over Respondent.

13. On March 29, 2012, Respondent violated 4 CCR 723-6-6103(b)(II) as alleged in CPAN No. 103485.  On March 28 and 29, 2012, Respondent violated 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 CFR 391.41(a)(1)(i) three times as alleged in CPAN Nos. 103484, 103495, and 103494.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for these admitted violations.  The maximum civil penalty for these violations is $2,035, including a 10 percent surcharge.  
14. The Parties have settled on a total assessment of $740.00.

The Parties stipulated to facts which, in their opinion, support the Agreement.  These facts are: (a) the violations admitted by High Mountain occurred during an investigation of High Mountain’s activities by Staff investigator Tony Cummings.  Cummings’ investigation occurred as part of his regular duties as a criminal investigator for the Colorado Public Utilities 

15. Commission; (b) High Mountain admits the maximum level of culpability for all violations; (c) After receiving the CPANs, High Mountain and Staff began negotiating a settlement, and maintained good contact; (d) High Mountain remedied the violations cited in the CPANs.

16. In accordance with Rule 1302(b), Rules of Practice and Procedure:

The Commission may impose a civil penalty, when provided by law,…after considering evidence concerning…the following factors:

(I)
The nature, circumstances, and gravity of the violation;

(II)
The degree of the respondent’s culpability;

(III)
The respondent’s history of prior offenses;

(IV)
The respondent’s ability to pay;

(V)
Any good faith efforts by the respondent in attempting to achieve compliance and to prevent future similar violations;

(VI)
The effect on the respondent’s ability to continue in business;

(VII)
The size of the business of the respondent; and

(VIII)
Such other factors such as equity and fairness may require.

Rule 1302(b) of the Rules of Practice and Procedure, 4 CCR 723-1.

17. The ALJ finds the payment of $740.00 achieves the following purposes underlying civil penalty assessment: (a) deterring future violations by Respondent; (b) motivating Respondent to comply with the law in the future; and (c) punishing Respondent for his past behavior. 

18. The Agreement is just and reasonable.  It will be accepted and the Motion will be granted.  Respondent will be ordered to pay $740.00 in accordance with the Agreement.  

19. The requested relief being unopposed, it is appropriate that response time be waived.  

20. Approval of the Agreement will not have a precedential affect upon other Commission matters.  See Colorado Ute Elec. Ass’n, Inc. v. PUC, 602 P.2d 861, 865 (Colo. 1979); B & M Serv., Inc. v. PUC, 429 P.2d 293, 296 (Colo. 1967).
21. Pursuant to § 40-6-109(2), C.R.S., the Administrative Law Judge recommends that the Commission enter the following order.
III. order

A. The Commission Orders That:

1. Response time to the Motion to Approve Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is waived and the request granted.

2. The Stipulation and Settlement Agreement (Agreement) is accepted and approved. A copy of the Agreement, attached hereto as Appendix A, is incorporated herein by reference.  Parties shall comply with the terms of the Agreement.

3. Hy-Mountain Transportation Inc., doing business as High Mountain Taxi is assessed a penalty of $740 for one violation of 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 
723-6-6103(b)(II), and for three violations of 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 Code of Federal Regulations 391.41(a)(1)(i), including a 10 percent surcharge imposed pursuant to § 24-34-108, C.R.S.  

4. Payment of the reduced penalty amount of $740, including the additional 10 percent surcharge is accepted as full payment for Civil Penalty Assessment Notice Nos. 103485, 103484, 103495, and 103494.

5. The hearing scheduled to commence on June 11, 2012, is vacated

6. Docket Nos. 12G-372CP, 12G-373CP, 12G-374CP, and 12G-375CP are closed. 

7. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

8. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

9. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.
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Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO


G. HARRIS ADAMS
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge



� This settled amount is inclusive of the mandatory 10 percent surcharge required by § 24-34-108, C.R.S.  
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